CITY OF NORTON SHORES
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
October 12, 2021

A regular meeting of the Norton Shores Planning Commission was called to order on Tuesday, October 12, 2021
at 5:30 p.m. in the community room of the Norton Branch Library, 705 Seminole Road.

Present:

Absent:

21-P44

21-P45

21-P46

21-P47

Chair Morano, Vice Chair Bush, Commissioners Lowe, Sipovic, Westgate, Drier, Philips and
Carroll; also, Ted Woodcock, Sarah Romine, Doug Hughes, and Todd Myers

Commissioners Trygstad

Commissioner Westgate moved to approve the minutes from the August 10, 2021 Planning
Commission meeting. The motion was supported by Commissioner Carroll and carried
unanimously.

Commissioner Sipovic moved to approve the minutes from the September 14, 2021 Planning
Commission meeting. The motion was supported by Commissioner Philips and carried
unanimously.

Site Plan Review — 2649, 2651, & 2689 Vulcan Street, Progressive AE/Cardinal Senior
Management

Public notices were mailed and published on September 24, 2021. A public hearing was held on
September 14, 2021, but due to a lack of quorum, no formal action was taken.

Commissioner Drier made a motion to approve the Site Plan Review for Progressive AE, on
behalf of the property owner, Cardinal Senior Management, for the proposed senior living
facility at 2649, 2651, and 2689 Vulcan Street per the submitted plans based on it meeting the
needs of the community and the required setbacks. The motion was supported by Commissioner
Bush and carried unanimously.

Special Use Permit and Site Plan Review — 6059 Grand Haven Road, Meadow View Estates

Public notices were mailed and published on September 24, 2021 and a Public Hearing was held.

Dennis Dunlap, on behalf of CAPCO LLC., informed the commission that they are looking to
develop 10 lots on 5 acres, with each lot will be roughly a half acre in size. Mr. Dunlap stated
that the development would be serviced by a cul-de-sac with an access road off of Grand Haven
Road, as well as all utilities (water, sewer, cable, electric, gas). Mr. Dunlap stated that the soil
erosion permit was approved that day and that a pond will be constructed on the property that
will provide fill for the site. Commissioner Drier asked for clarification on the location of the
pond per the site plan. Mr. Woodcock responded that the pond would be located in the northern
portion of the site. Commissioner Drier asked if setbacks for the pond were good and Mr.
Woodcock stated that they were currently working to approve them and that a pond permit will
have to be submitted to staff for approval. Commissioner Westgate asked the applicant about
setbacks for each site. Mr. Dunlap stated that the property is zoned PURD and they have
identified the setbacks that they would like to have for each site, which include a 25-foot front
and rear yard setback and 10-foot side yard setbacks. Mr. Dewey Bultsma, from 699 E. Mt.
Garfield spoke about his concerns regarding water and sewer in the area, and whether it will be
extended to his property which is located to the northwest of subject property.



10/12/21 Planning Minutes
Page 2

Commissioner Drier made a motion to recommend to the City Council that the Special Use
Permit for 6059 Grand Haven Road be approved to CAPCO LLC., to construct a 10-lot site
condominium development as per the submitted plans. The motion was supported by
Commissioner Carroll. Commissioner Westgate asked Mr. Woodcock about the setbacks in
residential areas within Norton Shores and how they compare, because a 25-foot front and rear
setback seem small. Mr. Woodcock stated that they are a little smaller than what is required in
the R-3 residential area, which is what you will typically find in Norton Shores. The R-3 residential
area has a front yard setback of 30-foot, a 40-foot rear yard setback, and 10-foot and 8-foot side
yard setbacks. Commissioner Westgate asked where the sewer is located. Mr. Woodcock stated
that the plans are still being worked on and that Matt Anderson, the Water and Sewer
Superintendent, is involved in the process however, he was at a conference and could not attend
the meeting. Mr. Woodcock stated that sewer runs along Grand Haven Road, that the utility will
run from the house at 6059 Grand Haven Road and will run west to the future site.
Commissioner Westgate stated that he was trying to address Mr. Bultsma’s concerns.
Commissioner Drier asked if Mr. Bultsma had discussed having utilities ran down Mt. Garfield
Road and Mr. Woodcock stated that is a discussion he needs to have with Mr. Anderson.
Commissioner Drier asked if water ran down the west side of Grand Haven Road and Mr.
Woodcock affirmed this. Commissioner Drier asked where on the site plan the setbacks were
laid out and Mr. Woodcock directed him to their location. Commissioner Drier asked if the
setbacks will be included as a special condition of the Special Use Permit or if it was included in
the site plan review. Mr. Woodcock stated that they will be included in the site plan review.
Commissioner Drier asked if there is any precedence regarding lot setbacks of this size in a PURD
zoning. Mr. Woodcock stated that PURD is flexible and the applicant is requesting the setbacks,
that the board could set the setbacks at what is required in the R-1 or R-2 residential zoning
districts. Commissioner Westgate asked if there are any other developments currently with a
PURD zoning and similar setbacks. Mr. Woodcock stated there are not. Commissioner Westgate
stated that it doesn’t sound like there is much the board can do to help Mr. Bultsma regarding
his property to the northwest and Chair Morano agreed. Commissioner Sipovic asked to revisit
the setbacks and whether they are in line with what Norton Shores wants, as far as them being
smaller. Commissioner Sipovic asked if the setbacks were smaller because of it being a site
condominium and Mr. Woodcock stated that is just what they are proposing. Mr. Woodcock
asked Mr. Hughes is the Planning Commission has the ability to change those setbacks and he
stated they do not. Mr. Hughes stated that the ordinance would have to be amended and he
clarified that each lot is 19,000 square feet. Mr. Hughes stated that a standard residential home
is roughly 2,500 square feet not anywhere near the 19,000 square foot mark. Commissioner
Drier clarified that the board needs to make sure that the setbacks are correct according to
buildable levels and water table and they need to make sure that the lots are not too tightly
built. Mr. Woodcock also stated that the board needs to keep in mind that the percentage of
buildable lot area is roughly 30% of the total lot size. Chair Morano recognized Jacqueline Thayer
on behalf of CAPCO LLC., and she pointed out to the board that the homes that will be
constructed on the lots will be smaller as stated on the site plan. They are marketing the homes
to be between 1,500 to 3,000 square feet. Chair Morano asked if the home size would be
included in the master deed for the property, because the board does not have control of the
marketed size once the site plan is approved. Chair Morano stated that the only way for house
size to be controlled is for it to be listed in the master deed for the property and if the board is
concerned about it, that they could add it as a condition of approval for the Special Use Permit.
Mr. Dunlap also stated that the potential homeowner’s association could also set home size as
well. Mr. Dunlap also stated that they based the setbacks off of other residential zoning districts,



21-P48

10/12/21 Planning Minutes
Page 3

because there were no standard setbacks within a PURD. Chair Morano asks the board if anyone
would like to introduce an amended motion to approve, hearing not comments from the board,
he moved forward with a vote. The motion was carried unanimously.

Commissioner Drier made a motion to approve the Site Plan Review for CAPCO LLC., to construct
a 10-lot site condominium development at 6059 Grand Haven Road per the submitted plans
contingent upon approval of the Special Use Permit. The motion was supported by
Commissioner Carroll and carried unanimously.

Zone Change — 3455 Tanglewood Drive, Equipment Share

Public notices were mailed and published on September 24, 2021 and a Public Hearing was held.

Kyle Osterhart, on behalf of Equipment Share, informed the commission that this zone change
request is the first step in their process. Mr. Osterhart stated that next they will be applying for
a Special Use Permit to operate an equipment rental and storage business. Chair Morano
reminded the board that the item before them is strictly a zone change request and not a Special
Use Permit, so questions should only be asked regarding the zone change. Mr. Osterhart stated
that from his understanding of zoning, a PUD zoning allows for more uses and gives the City
more oversight on what can be established in that zoning district.

Commissioner Westgate made a motion to recommend to the City Council that the zone change
request to change 3455 Tanglewood Drive from C-2 General Retail to Planned Unit Development
(PUD) is approved to Equipment Share based on that it is not spot zoning. The motion was
supported by Commissioner Philips. Commissioner Bush asked if the zone change was approved
and ultimately Equipment Share does not develop it, what would happen. Mr. Woodcock stated
that it will still be PUD zoned and any future development would have to go through the Special
Use Permit process. Commissioner Philips acknowledged that there are a number of PUD zoned
properties in the same area. Hearing no more questions from the board, Chair Morano called
for a vote, the motion was carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 6:03 pm.

Qmﬁx Rt

S ah Romine, Recording Secretary




